
Having trouble reading this? Please call 0115 901 3894 if you need it in large print, audio 
or another format.

Agenda

Civic Centre, 
Arnot Hill Park, 

Arnold,
Nottinghamshire, 

NG5 6LU

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Date: Monday 15 July 2019

Time: 5.30 pm

Place: Reception Room

For any further information please contact: 

Helen Lee

Democratic Services Officer

0115 901 3894

Public Document Pack



Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Membership

Chair Councillor Liz Clunie

Vice-Chair Councillor Paul Feeney

Councillor Sandra Barnes
Councillor Michael Boyle
Councillor Jim Creamer
Councillor Rachael Ellis
Councillor Andrew Ellwood
Councillor Mike Hope
Councillor Simon Murray
Councillor Marje Paling
Councillor Martin Smith
Councillor Sam Smith
Councillor Jennifer Thomas



AGENDA Page

1  Apologies for Absence and Substitutions.

2  To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 11 
March 2019.

5 - 7

3  Declaration of Interests.

4  Council Plan 2018/19: Overview of Quarter 4 and Year End 
Performance

9 - 28

Report of the Director of Organisational Development and Democratic Services.

5  Scrutiny Work Programme 29 - 37

Report of the Democratic Services Officer.

6  Reports and Notices received by the Chair of Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee as required under the Constitution or Law.

39

Report of the Democratic Services Officer

7  Any other item which the Chair considers urgent.



This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Monday 11 March 2019

Councillor Viv McCrossen (Chair)

Councillor Paul Feeney
Councillor Sandra Barnes
Councillor Kevin Doyle
Councillor Roxanne Ellis

Councillor Marje Paling
Councillor Stephen Poole
Councillor John Truscott

Apologies for absence: Councillor Kathryn Fox, Councillor Helen Greensmith 
and Councillor John Parr

Officers in Attendance: D Alvey and H Lee

Guests in Attendance J Hollingsworth

39   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS. 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Fox, Greensmith 
and Parr.

40   TO APPROVE, AS A CORRECT RECORD, THE MINUTES OF THE 
MEETING HELD ON 4 FEBRUARY 2019 

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the above meeting, having been circulated, be 
approved as a correct record.

41   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS. 

None.

42   PROGRAMME OF PORTFOLIO HOLDER ATTENDANCE 

The Committee welcomed Councillor Hollingsworth, Portfolio Holder for 
Growth and Regeneration, to discuss issues relating to her Portfolio.  
Dawn Alvey, Service Manager Growth and Regeneration also attended 
the meeting.

Councillor Hollingsworth comprehensively addressed issues relating to:

 The regeneration plans for Carlton Square

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 Arnold town centre, the challenges presented by changing 
shopping habits, the closure of shops and Arnold market

 The provision of affordable homes
 Work experience placements and apprenticeships.

RESOLVED to:

I. Thank Councillor Hollingsworth for her attendance and for 
providing comprehensive information; and

II. Note the contents of the discussion.

43   EVERYONE HEALTH WEIGHT MANAGEMENT SERVICE 

The Committee welcomed the John Wilcox, Senior Public Health & 
Commissioning Manager, Public Health, Nottinghamshire County 
Council and Aaron Bohannon, Service Manager Everyone Health who 
are attend the Committee to inform Members about the work of the 
Public Health commissioned Obesity Prevention and Weight 
Management Service.

Members were informed about the success of, and the challenges to, 
the weight management programme, preventative initiatives, working 
collaboratively with Gedling Borough Council, the extension to the four 
year contract and how an integrated wellbeing service will be 
commissioned in future.

Following discussion with Members the following points were 
highlighted:

 Targeted work takes place in the most deprived areas of the 
Borough

 Work within schools is limited
 Work to engage with different groups takes place in the 

community.

RESOLVED to:

 Thank the guests for a very informative discussion; and

 Note the content of the discussion.

44   SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 

Councillor McCrossen informed Members that Councillor Hollingsworth’s 
attendance at the Committee had completed the programme of Portfolio 
Holder attendance for the municipal year.  

Page 6



The Household Recycling working group report and recommendations 
were discussed and Members were advised that this would be submitted 
to Cabinet after the elections in May.

The committee were updated on the progress of the Wellbeing of Young 
People working group, the discussion with a Senior Youth Work 
Practitioner and a planned visit to Carlton le Willows School. Members of 
the working group want to discuss the issue with voluntary groups and 
the school nursing service before they draw together their conclusions. It 
is envisaged that the final report and recommendations will be available 
for the July Committee.

45   REPORTS AND NOTICES RECEIVED BY THE CHAIR OF 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE AS REQUIRED UNDER 
THE CONSTITUTION OR LAW. 

Members considered a report, which had been circulated in advance of 
the meeting, which included information on items referred to the Chair as 
required by the Constitution.

46   ANY OTHER ITEM WHICH THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT. 

None.

The meeting finished at 7.00 pm

Signed by Chair:
Date:

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Overview and Scrutiny Committee      

Subject:  Council Plan 2018/19: Overview of Quarter 4 and Year End 
Performance 

Date: 15 July 2019

Author: Director of Organisational Development and Democratic Services      

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

To inform the Overview and Scrutiny Committee of the position against 
Improvement Actions and Performance indicators in the 2018/2019 Gedling 
Plan at the end of 2018/19.

Recommendations:

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is recommended to:

 Consider, ask questions and identify any actions or indicators that require 
additional  information; and

 Note the progress against Actions and Performance Indicators in the 
2018/2019 Gedling Plan. 

2. BACKGROUND

2.1. As usual, comprehensive details about current performance against the 
Gedling Plan can be accessed through the following link on the Council's 
website:- 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



http://www.gedling.gov.uk/aboutus/howwework/prioritiesplansperformance/
howisgedlingdoing/

Members are recommended to view this document which reviews actions, 
indicators and outcomes for Quarter 4.  

2.2. A full set of papers that appear on the website have been printed and these 
reports are available in the Members’ Room. They contain explanations of 
variances from expected performance together with trend arrows for all the 
performance indicators within the Gedling Plan (note that an upward arrow 
indicates improved performance, irrespective of whether improvement is 
represented by a higher or lower value) and progress bars for all Gedling Plan 
actions showing progress made against project milestones. 

2.3. The assessment criteria used for actions and indicators is based on red, 
amber and green traffic light symbols. To be assessed as green performance 
indicators must be in line with their expected performance at this stage of the 
year, whilst actions must be on target against the “completed” or “in 
progress” milestones determined within Covalent. 

3. PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

Actions

3.1 During 2018-19, progress has been made as expected on 71 of the actions.
However, 4 actions have not progressed as expected and show as not 
complete at year end.

Page 10

http://www.gedling.gov.uk/aboutus/howwework/prioritiesplansperformance/howisgedlingdoing/
http://www.gedling.gov.uk/aboutus/howwework/prioritiesplansperformance/howisgedlingdoing/
http://www.gedling.gov.uk/aboutus/howwework/prioritiesplansperformance/howisgedlingdoing/
http://www.gedling.gov.uk/aboutus/howwework/prioritiesplansperformance/howisgedlingdoing/


The actions which were not progressed as expected during the year are:

Identify and implement practical initiatives to encourage cycling and 
walking - A Strategy has been developed for the implementation of a 
cycling/walking route along the Gedling Mineral Line but there are issues as to 
who should be responsible for taking this forward as the land is owned by 
Network Rail and the responsibility for cycling and walking sits with 
Nottinghamshire County Council.  The Borough is actively trying to work with 
Nottinghamshire County Council to come up with a plan for moving the project 
forward. 

Network Rail has been contacted regarding the poor condition of the route 
and a request made for Network Rail to undertake some improvement to the 
line.  Discussions are still ongoing.

This project will roll over into the 2019-20 planning cycle.

Page 11



Ensure the development and approval of an updated Asset Management 
Strategy - Work on the strategy has been deferred until the summer 2019 due 
to other work priorities.

Implement a programme of activity to deliver the Digital Strategy – This 
is an ongoing project which will continue into 2019-20.

Whilst a significant amount of activity has taken place to progress the Digital 
Strategy, two specific planned actions were not achieved in 2018-19. The 
Council intended to work in collaboration with the DWP to increase the 
number of self-serve internet points at the civic centre and create a ‘digital 
hub’. Proposals have been discussed with the DWP but confirmation of 
approval to move forward is awaited.  The Borough Council will continue to 
collaborate with the DWP or explore alternative options during 2019-20.
In addition, it has been agreed that exploring additional Wi-Fi coverage across 
the borough will be progressed as part of the Economic Growth and 
Regeneration town centre improvements projects.

Proactively promote the sale of council owned land for the purpose of 
creating new homes - This is on hold pending an evaluation and assessment 
of a business case for operating a council owned housing company.

Indicators

3.2 Quarter 4 

The following table shows the status of performance indicators appropriate for 
quarterly monitoring for each quarter throughout the year. During quarter 4, 22 
of the 32 performance indicators that are appropriate for quarterly monitoring 
met the target and of the remaining 6 are red, 3 is amber and 1 indicator is for 
tracking purposes only. 

Page 12



3.3 Year end

In addition to the performance indicators which are monitored on a quarterly 
basis, there are a number of indicators which are reported on an annual basis. 
The diagram below shows the performance position at the end of the year in 
respect of all 39 indicators included in the Gedling Plan. Overall performance 
is good with 25 of the indicators on target or slightly below target and 13 
behind target. 

Page 13



Performance review

3.4     Examples of particularly positive performance at the end of 2018-19 include:-

 The number of attendances at Bonington Theatre productions has increased 
from 37,297 to 55,552 which are also significantly above the annual target of 
28,500.  

 The number of theatre shows and events has also increased, rising from 687 
to 958 against a target of 690.

 Visits to our leisure centres have continued to increase with the number of 
visits going from 1,033,527 to 1,125,302.

 Average time of 3.4 days to process Housing Benefit change in circumstances 
against a target of 4 calendar days and a figure of 3.7 in 2017-18.

 Time taken to process Housing Benefit/Council Tax Benefit new claims and 
change events (in calendar days) was 4.6 days against a target of 6 days.

 Customer satisfaction with the overall customer service at 98.2% has 
exceeded the target of 85% and increased from 96.7%.

 94.3% of calls to the contact centre were answered (or call back made) 
against a target of 90%.

 The number of long term empty homes that we have returned to use was 37 
against target of 20.

 Number of garden waste customers now stands at 15,057 up from 14,548.

13

2
23

1
2018/19 Year End - Indicator Performance

Missed Target
Slightly below target

Page 14



 96.8% of Major planning applications processed within 8 weeks against a 
target of 90%.

 The percentage of Minor planning applications processed within 8 weeks has 
increased from 90.7% to 93.6%

 The proportion of other planning applications processed within 8 weeks has 
increased from 94.6% to 96.6% 

3.5 Whilst overall performance is good, the following areas are highlighted as 
being of concern and require focused attention in 2019-20.

Level of all crime

All Crime - Recorded crime for quarter 4 2018-19 has shown a decrease of 
3.2% compared to the previous quarter but an overall increase of 2.3% 
compared to the period April 2017 to March 2018.  However, this increase is 
less than South Notts. Community Partnership as a whole, which has an 
overall increase of 4.8% compared to the same period last year.

Key priorities for the community safety partnership will be focused upon 
violence while maintaining existing work to address burglary (year to date 
20% decrease) and vehicle crime (year to date a 4.6% decrease) and 
violence (year to date increase of 24.9%).

Anti-social behaviour - Recorded ASB has halved since 2011. This 
improvement appears to have flattened out during 2018-19. This has been 
due to a number of high profile issues in the Arnold area. The individuals 
responsible have been dealt with.

Revenues and Welfare

Average time to process new Housing Benefit claims (in calendar days) 
currently stands at 13.7 days against a target of 13. The quarter 4 result is 
positive and has improved the annual performance to 13.7 days. Despite 
missing the target by 0.7 days this performance is still within the top 5% of 
councils in the country, with the national average being 22 days.

Average length of time spent in Temporary accommodation finished the year 
at 11.1 weeks, against a target of 8 weeks. The quarter 4 result is positive at 
6.7 weeks and has improved the annual performance to 11.1 weeks. This is 
mainly to do with sourcing additional temporary accommodation from Gedling 
Homes.  New legislation introduced on 1 April 2018 (Homelessness Reduction 
Act) requires the council to provide 56 days for temporary accommodation 

Page 15



relief instead of the previous 28 days. This is very much demand led and very 
dependent on Gedling Homes, Housing Associations and Private Sector 
properties being available for temporary accommodation, of which there are 
very few.  In reality the situation will not improve until there are more 
properties available for private rental. This is a national as well as a local 
problem. 

Economic Growth and Regeneration

Homes

Net additional homes provided 286 against a target of 480 - The adoption of 
the Local Planning Document in July 2018 amended the Green Belt boundary 
and brought forward a number of housing allocations which will result in an 
increase in house building.  A number of planning applications have now been 
submitted and/or determined in relation to the housing allocations but the 
timescale for the development of individual sites is in the hands of the 
developers. 
Following the publication of the Housing Delivery Test results in February 
2019 a Housing Delivery Action Plan is being prepared setting out a range of 
actions to help increase completions.  Discussions are ongoing with 
developers and landowners through the regular developers' forum meetings 
and in conjunction with other Greater Nottingham authorities (via the Housing 
Delivery Workshop) to understand constraints to delivery and identify potential 
solutions. 

Number of affordable homes delivered 50 against a target of 130 - In this 
year, there have been fewer affordable homes have been delivered than 
expected. This reflects the slow pace of delivery in the wider housing market 
associated with recent economic conditions.  However, this is still a significant 
increase over previous years and the Local Plan adoption has helped with 
this. 
Notable sites delivered this year includes: the former Cavendish public house, 
Maidens Dale and Moyra Drive garage sites.

Support for Business/Apprentices

Number of working age work experience placements created in Gedling 
Borough Council – originally we planned for 16 placements, but finished on 10 
days. For two years the DWP have not actively engaged with placements, this 

Page 16



has partly been due to a change in their priorities and partly due to the 
absence of the lead officer in DWP. The Service Manager for OD has now 
linked up with a different lead officer in DWP on a temporary basis to 
reinvigorate the partnership arrangement. The placement profiles supplied by 
most service mangers have been shared again across local job centre offices. 
Service managers have been reminded of the placement profile that they 
submitted so that contact from the DWP won't be unexpected.  The ten 
placements that we did achieve came from a variety of other sources.

Number of small and medium size enterprises supported to recruit their first 
apprentice - This indicator is reliant upon two aspects: work through the 
Erasmus project and general Economic Growth work programme. Firstly, the 
final stages of the Erasmus project which was due to deliver the final set of 
apprentices as a carry forward from the previous year (which was achieved). 
The second aspect to achieving this target was focused on further 
engagement with SMEs to help facilitate additional apprenticeship 
placements. Unfortunately, this was not achieved as officer time was re-
assigned to closing down the Erasmus project and the senior economic 
growth officer left part way through the financial year. The ability of the 
economic growth team to deliver this stream of work and how SMEs are 
engaged with generally going forward is being reviewed.
Number of employment agreements and pre-employment arrangements 
including pre-employment training, placements in education, apprenticeship 
starts and jobs created - This indicator was to be delivered through two 
routes: the final delivery stages of the Erasmus project and the general 
Economic Growth work programme. Firstly, the final stages of the Erasmus 
project which was due to deliver the final numbers (which delivered 13-14 
achieved). The second aspect did not deliver the remaining amount and this 
was partly down to development sites not coming forward as quickly as 
anticipated and some operational issues with the Local Labour Agreements. 
This being said, a review of the Local Labour Agreement process is being 
undertaken.
As part of supporting SME apprenticeships support 16-24 year old Gedling 
Borough residents to secure an apprenticeship - This indicator is reliant upon 
two aspects: work through the Erasmus project and general Economic Growth 
work programme. Firstly, the final stages of the Erasmus project which was 
due to deliver the final set of apprentices as a carry forward from the previous 
year (which was achieved). The second aspect to achieving this target was 
focused on further engagement with SMEs to help facilitate additional 16-24 
apprenticeship placements. Unfortunately, this was not achieved as officer 

Page 17



time was re-assigned to closing down the Erasmus project and the senior 
economic growth officer left part way through the financial year. The ability of 
the economic growth team to deliver this stream of work and how SMEs are 
engaged with generally going forward is being reviewed.

Achievements

3.6 A separate report is produced highlighting key achievements delivered during 
quarter 4, focusing on areas where the Council has made a real difference to 
people’s lives. This is attached as Appendix 9 and is available on the 
Council’s website and in hard copy in the Members’ Room. The following 
outcomes are identified for particular attention:

Second Knife Amnesty Event - Gedling Borough Council supported the 
second Nottinghamshire Police Knife Amnesty Event in March.  635 knives 
were handed in across Nottinghamshire including at a reception point in the 
Civic Centre in Arnold. This is the highest number since the amnesty launch in 
2013.  Weapon searches in open space, test purchases to ensure that knives 
are not sold to those under 16 and talks to schools were also carried out. The 
amnesty helps prevent potentially deadly weapons falling into the wrong 
hands.

Pride of Gedling Awards - In March we hosted the third Pride of Gedling 
awards event, showcasing the outstanding work of the people who live in the 
borough, especially those who make such a positive contribution to society. 
The entrants this year were some of the strongest yet.  A judging panel of 
councillors and Nottingham Post editor, Mike Sassi, had the difficult task of 
selecting a winner. On the night there was a huge array of emotions listening 
to the incredible stories of the people nominated.

The Gedling Big Spring Clean - The campaign was launched across the 
borough to help communities who want to do more to keep tidy where they 
live, starting with a clean-up day on 16th March supported by community 
leaders and attended by volunteers who were provided with litter picking 
equipment, waste bags and high-vis clothing.  The clean-up comes as the 
council announces further plans for investment in frontline services in the 
borough, including the introduction of a new Rapid Response Cleaning Team 
to further strengthen efforts to deal with litter, dog fouling and fly tipping.

Intergenerational Event - On 30th March the Youth Council hosted a 
spectacular intergenerational event at The Beacon, working collaboratively on 

Page 18



the planning with members of the Gedling Seniors Council. The event was 
attended by over 40 members of the younger and older communities, 
incorporated jokes, poetry, filmmaking and photography and involved 
structured, speed dating style debate on six key issues identified by the 
planning group. These were: 

 School life
 Bullying/Cyberbullying 
 Prejudice and Discrimination 
 Loneliness and Isolation 
 Mental Health 
 Knife Crime, fear of crime

Outcomes from the event will be:
   A manifesto for change on the above issues to be presented to policy   

makers and influencers
   A film presentation to be showcased at Council and Partnership 

meetings
   A permanent art installation (subject to further funding)    
   Further intergenerational collaboration

Record number of kids learning to Swim - Gedling’s swimming pools are at 
an all-time high in terms of the number of children currently on the ‘learn to 
swim scheme’. By the end of March, there were 2669 compared to 2223 in 
March last year, which demonstrates the excellent teaching standards and 
overall service at the sites that is attracting so many new customers.

Warm Homes on Prescription - The innovative Warm Homes on 
Prescription service has continued to grow in 2018-19 which has been it most 
successful year to date. A total of 14 low income households suffering priority 
medical conditions have been supported with improvement works such as 
improved insulation or heating systems to remove hazards in the home and lift 
householders out of fuel poverty. The project partnership approach has been 
recognised and picked up the Efficiency East Midlands “Collaborative Working 
Award 2019”. 
The council recently adopted an Energy Company Obligation Statement of 
Intent which seeks to attract substantially more funding from utilities 
companies in 2019-20 to help vulnerable household in the borough.

Netherfield Cinder Path - The cinder Path received approximately £90,000 
funding from WREN, Gedling Homes and Gedling Borough Council in 

Page 19



September to refurbish a space that is well loved by residents.  The new route 
was opened by the Mayor in March 2019 and local schoolchildren attended 
from Netherfield Primary School and Colwick St Johns Primary to undertake a 
local history quiz on the day.  
The improvements have opened up the route so it feels safer for users with 
new lighting installed, old lighting reconfigured, dead and diseased trees and 
shrubbery removed.  Four new interpretation panels have also been installed 
depicting the history of Cinder Path and its link with the former Bourne factory, 
the history of the local railway line and information boards to promote walking 
and its health benefits.

Heritage Brought Alive Project - On 15th March Gedling Borough’s “Heritage 
Brought Alive Project” was launched at Café 1899 at Gedling Country Park.  
The event included a book launch, the unveiling of mosaics created by local 
children, a mural and a short film showing information about the borough’s 
historic places, people and industries. The project, made possible thanks to a 
£74,900 grant from the Heritage Lottery Fund and the work of volunteers over 
the last 15 months, is part of the council’s heritage strategy with more projects 
planned to follow.

Eagles Nest Community Centre and VCS Hub - One year on from the 
successful asset transfer, recent one to one meetings and discussions with 
Eagles Nest have yielded outstanding outcomes at the Eagles Nest CC. 
Eagles Nest has just filed the first full year’s Annual Report and is now making 
a £5k surplus, is fully booked and delivering a wide range of programmes and 
activities, including parent and toddler groups, social and creative activities for 
older people, intergenerational sessions and much more. Plans are underway 
for further reinvestment back into the centre as follows.

The Eagles Nest has acted as a mentor to other groups considering Asset 
Transfer, and a natural progression of this has been the establishment of a 
VCS Resource Hub at Arnot Hill House. We have actively promoted the 
facilities through the COMMUNITY E Newsletter and Contacts, which has led 
to at least two new groups signing up to use the facilities. Collaborative work 
is also underway between GBC, Eagles Nest and NCC to improve the Gedling 
search facility of the Notts. Help Yourself website.   

APPENDICIES
Appendix 1:  Achievements and Activities

Page 20



 

 

 

 

 

Examples of Achievements and Activities 

 

During 

 

Quarter 4 2018/19 

  

Page 21



PEOPLE 

Objective: Reduce anti-social behaviour, crime and the fear of crime 

Second Knife Amnesty Event - Gedling Borough Council supported the second 
Nottinghamshire Police Knife Amnesty Event in March.  635 knives were handed in across 
Nottinghamshire including at a reception point in the Civic Centre in Arnold. This is the highest 
number since the amnesty launch in 2013.  Weapon searches in open space, test purchases to 
ensure that knives are not sold to those under 16 and talks to schools were also carried out. The 
amnesty helps prevent potentially deadly weapons falling into the wrong hands. 
 
Community Theatre - Work has continued with The Pythian Group on knife crime prevention 
holding eight events in Q4 for young people.  

 

Objective: Provide a range of leisure activities for young people 

Diversionary Activities at Local Youth Settings - Diversionary activities continue to expand 
with Netherfield Youth club starting to deliver Smash up badminton sessions in the New Year. 
Youth Club Staff will be attending training and will therefore be delivering the session within the 
youth club setting to allow the sessions to be sustainable.  
The delivery of club 1 individual fitness activities will commence in January at Newstead Youth 
Club. Sessions have been planned by the coaches to give the young people in Newstead the 
opportunity to try a range of activities.   
These activities have been possible following funding secured by Gedling Borough Council. 
 
Carlton Forum’s Pools - Due to improved training of staff, a pool plant review and a programme 
of planned preventative maintenance the good news is that Carlton Forum have not cancelled a 
swimming lesson or closed the swimming pools due to a plant room failure since February 2018. 
As a result of this operational stability, improved pool programming and good staff Carlton 
Forums swim school has grown in members and income.  
 
Record number of kids learning to Swim - Gedling’s swimming pools are at an all-time high in 
terms of the number of children currently on the ‘learn to swim scheme’. By the end of March, 
there were 2669 compared to 2223 in March last year, which demonstrates the excellent 
teaching standards and overall service at the sites that is attracting so many new customers. 
 
Football Development - Football Development Group meeting held on Monday 21st January, 
with representatives from 9 different clubs. Topics discussed included Local Football Facility 
Plan, Playing Pitch Strategy and the confirmed FA level 1 course running at Redhill in April/May 
2019. 
 
A Community Infrastructure Levy application successful for funding towards Lambley Lane Rec to 
make necessary improvements to the football facilities on that site. Initial consultation with 
Lambley Lane Rec users has taken place and an FA Pitch inspection has taken place. 

 
Objective: Reduce hardship and provide support to the most vulnerable 

Warm Homes on Prescription - The innovative Warm Homes on Prescription service has 
continued to grow in 2018/19 which has been it most successful year to date. A total of 14 low 
income households suffering priority medical conditions have been supported with improvement 
works such as improved insulation or heating systems to remove hazards in the home and lift 
householders out of fuel poverty. The project partnership approach has been recognised and 
picked up the Efficiency East Midlands “Collaborative Working Award 2019”.  

Page 22



The council recently adopted an Energy Company Obligation Statement of Intent which seeks to 
attract substantially more funding from utilities companies in 2019/20 to help vulnerable 
household in the borough. 
 
Netherfield Cinder Path - The cinder Path received approximately £90,00 funding from WREN, 
Gedling Homes and Gedling Borough Council in September to refurbish a space that is well 
loved by residents.  The new route was opened by the Mayor in March 2019 and local 
schoolchildren attended from Netherfield Primary School and Colwick St Johns Primary to 
undertake a local history quiz on the day.   
The improvements have opened up the route so it feels safer for users with new lighting installed, 
old lighting reconfigured, dead and diseased trees and shrubbery removed.  Four new 
interpretation panels have also been installed depicting the history of Cinder Path and its link with 
the former Bourne factory, the history of the local railway line and information boards to promote 
walking and its health benefits. 
 
Gedling Mineral Line - A Strategy has been developed for the implementation of a 
cycling/walking route along the mineral line.  With the current landowner being Network Rail and 
the responsibility for cycling and walking sitting with Nottinghamshire County Council, the 
Borough Council is seeking to work with Nottinghamshire County Council to come up with a plan 
for moving the project forward.  
The Locality Coordinator for Netherfield has been in regular liaison with Network Rail regarding 
improvements to the current condition of the route.  
Plans are also being developed to extend the work of the Cinder Path to take in Manvers Street 
and to link with the Mineral Line route.  This section is also owned by Network Rail.  Detailed 
design work is being undertaken and costed and then will be presented to Network Rail to inform 
and influence delivery possibilities.  £3,500 funding from Gedling Homes has been received to 
undertake this work. 
 
Conway Park - Refurbishment Plan and Strategy has been produced for Conway Park and 
further work to align this with the Borough’s Heritage Strategy is planned.  A funding bid has now 
been submitted to Nottinghamshire County Council’s Local Improvement Scheme for an Adult 
Gym and a further bid submitted to WREN for children's Play Area. 
 
WeRHere - WeRHere is a counselling service for families who are facing crisis and the Council 
agreed a Service Level Agreement and grant funding with the service for 2018/19.   
WeRHere supported 19 client and delivered 313 sessions in the first 6 months of 18/19.  Figures 
for the second half of the year are due in May 2019.  
 
GBC Staff Training - An Improving Health through Warmer Homes course was co-ordinated for 
GBC staff. 13 members of staff from, Community Relations, Housing, Public Protection and 
Customer Services attended the course delivered by the Notts Energy partnership. 

 
Objective: Promote and encourage pride, good citizenship and participation 
in the local area 
 
Heritage Brought Alive Project - On 15th March Gedling Borough’s “Heritage Brought Alive 
Project” was launched at Café 1899 at Gedling Country Park.  The event included a book launch, 
the unveiling of mosaics created by local children, a mural and a short film showing information 
about the borough’s historic places, people and industries. The project, made possible thanks to 
a £74,900 grant from the Heritage Lottery Fund and the work of volunteers over the last 15 
months, is part of the council’s heritage strategy with more projects planned to follow. 

 

Page 23



Memorial to Florence Paton - A memorial to Florence Paton, the first woman Member of 
Parliament in Nottinghamshire has been installed at Carlton Hill Garden for the Blind. She 
represented the Rushcliffe Constituency for Labour from 1945- 1950. In 1945 Rushcliffe included 
Gedling, Colwick and the entire urban district of Carlton. Artist Hilary Cartmel was commissioned 
by Councillor Roxanne Ellis along with the International Women’s Day steering group to produce 
the memorial. The art work describes some of Florence’s key political concerns and her links to 
the local area. 
 
Caribbean Elders - This local elders group was previously unconstituted, without a bank 
account, internal policies, nor any membership administration and totally reliant upon former 
Gedling CVS staff for all arrangements, from booking of meals, day trips, Christmas outings, 
guest speakers and regular chair based exercise sessions.  As a result of ongoing one to one 
support from the Council since the closure of Gedling CVS, the group now has a committee of 
four individuals, a bank account, has adopted a constitution and full set of required policies, 
membership forms and maintains a membership register. The group has also participated in high 
profile media projects over the last two years and was successful in receiving a further three 
year’s grant funding from the County Council in 2018 with support from the Community 
Investment Manager. Three members of the group also regularly attend meetings of the Gedling 
Seniors Council.    

 
Eagles Nest Community Centre and VCS Hub - One year on from the successful asset 
transfer, recent one to one meetings and discussions with Eagles Nest have yielded outstanding 
outcomes at the Eagles Nest CC. Eagles Nest has just filed the first full year’s Annual Report and 
is now making a £5k surplus, is fully booked and delivering a wide range of programmes and 
activities, including parent and toddler groups, social and creative activities for older people, 
intergenerational sessions and much more. Plans are underway for further reinvestment back 
into the centre as follows. 
 
The Eagles Nest has acted as a mentor to other groups considering Asset Transfer, and a 
natural progression of this has been the establishment of a VCS Resource Hub at Arnot Hill 
House. We have actively promoted the facilities through the COMMUNITY E Newsletter and 
Contacts, which has led to at least two new groups signing up to use the facilities. Collaborative 
work is also underway between GBC, Eagles Nest and NCC to improve the Gedling search 
facility of the Notts Help Yourself website.    
 
Pride of Gedling Awards - In March we hosted the third Pride of Gedling awards event, 
showcasing the outstanding work of the people who live in the borough, especially those who 
make such a positive contribution to society. The entrants this year were some of the strongest 
yet.  A judging panel of councillors and Nottingham Post editor, Mike Sassi, had the difficult task 
of selecting a winner. On the night there was a huge array of emotions listening to the incredible 
stories of the people nominated.  
 
Chinese New Year Event - The Council, with support from Gedling Play Forum delivered a 
family arts and crafts event offering Chinese New Year inspired activities. Local company, 
‘Handmade Theatre’ provided story and puppetry workshops and around 160 children attended 
with their parents. The event also hosted the popular traditional Lion Dance outside the Civic 
Centre. 
 
Members Community Initiatives Fund - The Members Community Initiatives 18/19 fund closed 
on 15th March and final outturn reported. Initial analysis shows that around 145 community 
groups and organisations have benefitted from funding this year. 
 
 
 

Page 24



Intergenerational Event - On 30th March the Youth Council hosted a spectacular 
intergenerational event at The Beacon, working collaboratively on the planning with members of 
the Gedling Seniors Council. The event was attended by over 40 members of the younger and 
older communities, incorporated jokes, poetry, filmmaking and photography and involved 
structured, speed dating style debate on six key issues identified by the planning group. These 
were:  

 School life 

 Bullying/Cyberbullying  

 Prejudice and Discrimination  

 Loneliness and Isolation  

 Mental Health  

 Knife Crime, fear of crime 

  
Outcomes from the event will be: 

 A manifesto for change on the above issues to be presented to policy makers and 
influencers 

 A film presentation to be showcased at Council and Partnership meetings 

 A permanent art installation (subject to further funding)     

 Further intergenerational collaboration. 
 

Haywood Road Community Centre - All agreed pre transfer financial investment in the site has 
been completed and a successful WREN bid has enabled development of the external grassed 
area. A Formal CAT submission has been received in late March 2019 from the Haywood Road 
Community Centre Committee. Next step will be to trigger formal consultation and make an 
assessment of the application post Easter break. 
 
Wollaton Avenue Community Centre - Following one to one meetings and financial support to 
enable the group to produce a business plan with assistance from Community Accounting Plus, 
Gedling Play Forum has submitted a new business plan to the Council for comments with a view 
to taking on a new lease for the Wollaton Avenue building in Gedling.   
 
Newstead Centre - Support from Locality was commissioned and delivered in September 2018 
to develop a vision and business plan for the Newstead Centre. As a result, the Committee has 
been re-galvanised with old and new skilled members joining/rejoining the existing committee. An 
interim monthly grant of £900 has been awarded by GBC under an SLA for the period from 
January to June 2019, to enable the group to put their business plan into action, and to make 
applications for funding to invest in the site, including proposals to relocate the community café 
and improve WIFI connectivity. Ongoing support in this to be provided by the Newstead Locality 
Coordinator. 
 
Netherfield St Georges Centre/ Netherfield Medical Centre -  The Community Investment 
Manager has been supported the St Georges Centre in applying for funding to appoint 
consultants to develop a business plan and design feasibility study for the development of a new 
Children, Young People and Families Hub . A subsequent Awards For All application, prepared 
on behalf of Netherfield Forum LTD, was successful to the tune of £10,000.  
High quality business plan and design feasibility studies have been produced regarding taking on 
the current adjacent Medical Centre, a detailed valuation of the site commissioned and a further 
grant submission has been made by the Community Investment Manager on behalf of the group 
to the NCC LIS Capital Fund Feb 2019 for a further £10,000 to engage in wider consultation and 
technical development of the proposal. Outcome May 2019.  
A high level meeting took place in March between Netherfield Forum, the GBC Community 
Investment Manager, Vernon Coaker and local Elected Members with a view to engaging with 
the National Lottery Reaching Communities Fund in lieu of a substantial £500,000+ bid to enable 
purchase and first phase development of the site. Next steps are to formally submit the business 

Page 25



plan and project design feasibility study for consideration as part of the Netherfield Locality work 
and to hold a business meeting with the National Lottery Reaching Communities Fund. 
     
COMMUNITY E-Newsletter - The  Community E-Newsletter have been distributed to over 2159 
representatives of voluntary, community organisations and the general public in the Borough, 
providing information about VCS Support initiatives, events, volunteering and funding available in 
Gedling. 
 

Objective: Improve health and wellbeing 

New Year’s Day Parkrun - Gedling held an event on New Year’s Day which attracted 466 
runners. This was the highest ever attendance at Gedling parkrun many of the runners then went 
over to Colwick to do it again at 10:30am. 126 runners were tourists from Sydney as well as 
Leeds, Wellingborough, Exeter, London, Dewsbury and Lincoln. There were 5 participants taking 
part for the first time.  

 
Boditrax - The leisure centres have been trialling a Boditrax machine that measures body 
composition enabling customers the ability to measure the makeup of their body, fat, muscle, 
water etc. simply and quickly by standing on the machine for a short time. This provides a 
baseline assessment for members at the start of their fitness journey, which can then be used to 
demonstrate improvements. 998 assessments have been carried out in the 5-week trial, 
demonstrating how useful customers are finding this assessment.  
 
£10,000 for Food Environment Project - GBC has been awarded £10,000 from 
Nottinghamshire County Council to undertake a Food Environment project during 2019/20.  This 
builds of preparation work done by the Locality Coordinators with local partners and the local GP 
in Netherfield to start the process of developing a cookery book for the local community. 
The project will be seeking to deliver:  

 Local people attending cook and eat sessions.  

 Number of people attending social eating events.  

 Number of community champions identified and trained 

 Provision of slow cookers to vulnerable clients  

 Creation of costed healthy eating recipe and sharing. 

 Community recipe books targeting different ages. 

 Number of sessions at school holiday activities including providing healthy meals and 
cooking skills. 

 Capturing ideas from local community into newsletter. 

 Number of local people engaged and offered affordable healthy eating advice at events.  

 Public health analyst data report. 

 Information to inform future funding bids. 
 
SPRIING - The SPRIING project has been successfully extended for an additional 12 months to 
March 2020. Both GBC and Gedling Homes have secured funding for the part time co-ordinators.  
Referrals continue through a range of sources and 31 community navigators are now signed up 
to the project and have gone through an induction and training. A 12 month evaluation will now 
take place and planning for the next 12 months is in place. 
The caseload currently stands at 60 people and the project has been redesigned to include 
regular ‘SPRIING Link’ social and information events, and is building a wide range of 
partnerships with local and strategic groups and organisations. 
 
ROSPA - Gedling’s leisure centres have been awarded the silver standard in the ROSPA (The 
Royal Society for the Prevention of Accidents) external health and safety award scheme. These 
awards offer organisations an opportunity to prove their ongoing commitment to raising health 
and safety standards.  

Page 26



 
Facility Improvements - During Q4 Carlton Forum has improved the squash courts with filled 
and painted walls as well as the floor being sanded and relined, to improve the overall experience 
of customers utilising the facility. Additionally the upstairs toilets have also been redecorated with 
new vanity units and lighting. Feedback form customers has been very positive about both areas. 
 
Leisure Transformation - During quarter 4 a consultant began work on the Leisure Facilities 
Investment Strategy and Physical Activity Strategy, which will be used to shape the future leisure 
provision in the borough. 
 
Bonington Cinema - Significant growth has continued for the Bonington Cinema during Q4 with 
attendances for the year up from 17,500 in 17/18 to 32,000 in 18/19. Screenings specifically 
aimed at parents with Babies & Toddlers have now become a regular feature of the programme.  
 
Health and Wellbeing Newsletter - Two editions of the Community Health and Wellbeing 
newsletter sent out to over 3000 subscribers and contained information on a number of activities 
and services provided to improve health and wellbeing including: Falls Prevention advice, 
Change4Life snack swaps, NHS Cervical Screening campaign, smoking advice, online gambling 
support and Everyone Health’s latest weight management service. 
 
Memorial to Thomas Hawksley - Following an award of £10,000 from Severn Trent an artist 
has been commissioned to create a memorial to Thomas Hawksley, who famously pioneered a 
network of pumping stations with steam engines, to enable clean drinking water to be piped to 
homes and businesses. A steering group for the project comprised of members of Arnold Local 
History Group, the director of Papplewick Pumping Station, and a number of local history 
enthusiasts have selected Richard Janes to produce the memorial. Richard Janes has previously 
worked with the Council on a memorial and decorative benches at Gedling Country Park. A 
number of local schools will be involved in finalising the design of the memorial. Hawksley was 
born in Arnot Hill House and the completed art work will be installed in Arnot Hill Park in the 
autumn. 

 
PLACE 

Objective: Provide an attractive and sustainable local environment that local 

people can enjoy and appreciate 

The Gedling Big Spring Clean - The campaign was launched across the borough to help 
communities who want to do more to keep tidy where they live, starting with a clean-up day on 
16th March supported by community leaders and attended by volunteers who were provided with 
litter picking equipment, waste bags and high-vis clothing.  The clean-up comes as the council 
announces further plans for investment in frontline services in the borough, including the 
introduction of a new Rapid Response Cleaning Team to further strengthen efforts to deal with 
litter, dog fouling and fly tipping. 
 
Electric Vehicle Charging Points - Fourteen new electric vehicle charging points have been 
installed in Netherfield and Carlton with more to follow. 
 
 
Burton Joyce Neighbourhood Plan - The Burton Joyce Neighbourhood Plan was officially 
made (adopted) by Gedling Borough Council on 10th January 2019.  This means that the 
Neighbourhood Plan is being used in conjunction with the Aligned Core Strategy (2014) and the 
Local Planning Document (2018) to determine planning applications in the Neighbourhood Plan 
(being the parish of Burton Joyce). 
 

Page 27



PERFORMANCE 

Objective: Improve the customer experience of dealing with the Council/ Give 

taxpayers value for money 

Gedling Borough Council Funding Strategy - The Community Investment Manager has 
produced an External Funding Strategy for the Council, in collaboration with a Funding Strategy 
Steering Group. The draft document has been presented to a meeting of the Senior Leadership 
Team and Service Managers in Q4 and is collating final amendments before the document is 
formally adopted by The Council.     
 

Objective: Maintain a positive and productive working environment and 
strong staff morale 

Wellbeing at Work - Latest staff newsletter circulated including information on: No Smoking day, 
salt awareness, online gambling, staff activities and Menopause information. A new blood 
pressure monitor has been purchased to offer staff Blood pressure checks in the workplace. So 
far 14 members of staff have taken up this offer. Additional Bone Density and NHS health checks 
offered to staff in January 2019.  

 

Page 28



Report to: Overview and Scrutiny Committee      

Subject:  Scrutiny Work Programme 

Date: 15 July 2019

Author: Democratic Services Officer    
   
1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

To: 
 Discuss the 2018/2019 programme of scrutiny reviews.
 Consider the continuance of the programme of Portfolio Holder 

attendance
 Identify areas for examination in the 2019/20 work programme.

Recommendations

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is recommended to:

 Note the information relating to the Household Refuse Recycling review.

 Consider how the Committee would like to take the Wellbeing of Young 
People review work forward.

 Agree the continuation of the programme of Portfolio Holder attendance.

 Discuss and prioritise areas for in depth review.

2. SCRUTINY REVIEWS 2018/19

Household Refuse Recycling

Page 29

Agenda Item 5



The report and recommendations from this review will be presented to 
Cabinet on the 1st August 2019. A written response to the 
recommendations will be available at the September Committee, at which 
time Members will have the opportunity to discuss the response to the 
recommendations.

Wellbeing of Young People

This review was set up in response to Member’s concern that the lack of 
appropriate services for young people in the borough may be exacerbating 
poor mental and emotional health. Members of the working group have 
discussed this with representatives from Nottinghamshire County Council 
Youth Services, the Children’s Integrated Commissioning Hub and Public 
Health.  In addition they have visited the Carlton le Willows Academy and 
consulted the Gedling Borough Council Service Manager for Community 
Relations. It was planned that the group would discuss this with the 
voluntary group ‘We are Here’ and they very much wanted to speak to a 
representative from the School Nursing Service, but this was proving very 
difficult to arrange. The working group was unable to conclude this review 
due to the borough elections and as the review has lost the Chair of the 
working group and there is only one remaining member on the Committee 
a decision has to be taken how this review should be taken forward.

The committee could:

 Continue with this work with a new membership
 Abandon this review
 Ask the newly appointed Portfolio Holder for Young People and 

Equalities if she has any plans to undertake any work in this 
area as the information gathered may be of some assistance.

3. 2019/2020 WORK PROGRAMME

One of the main roles of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee is 
establishing and managing the Council’s programme of scrutiny work.

This includes:

 agreeing a programme of work for the municipal year

Page 30



 monitoring progress of the programme throughout the year
 developing reports and recommendations on issues of local 

concern
 evaluating the progress of any recommendations made.

Effective work programming is important for effective scrutiny.  When 
setting the work programme the Committee should aim to have clear 
priorities for what it is hoping to achieve and how they want to do it.
The work programme which is a flexible plan outlines the programme for 
the coming municipal year and is usually developed at the first meeting 
after the Annual Council. The programme is drawn together by the Chair 
and members of the Committee and can include issues put forward by 
Members, topics that arise during discussion with Portfolio Holders and 
senior officers, concerns generated from the Corporate Complaints Policy, 
the Gedling Plan, results of the Gedling Conversation, performance data 
and potential issues arising from corporate priorities or the Forward Plan. 
A draft 2019/20 work programme is attached at Appendix 1 which 
includes items already scheduled including dates for performance review 
information and the mandatory annual review of the work of the Local 
Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnerships.

I. Scrutiny at committee

It has previously been agreed by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
that the on-going scrutiny of specific service areas within individual 
Portfolios would be dealt with at the Scrutiny Committee itself, rather than 
in working groups.  Additional scrutiny will only be conducted if deemed 
necessary by the Committee. A rolling programme of attendance by 
Portfolio Holders and relevant Corporate Directors for 2019/20 can be 
arranged. Members will be asked prior to each meeting which specific 
service areas they would like to examine. Questions for Portfolio Holders 
will be requested in advance of each meeting, however ‘ad hoc’ questions 
may be put forward at the meeting itself. Information regarding Cabinet 
and Portfolio responsibilities is attached at Appendix 2.

 
Members are asked to consider if they would like to continue with this 
rolling programme of Portfolio Holder attendance, which Portfolio Holders 
they would like to invite, and to discuss and make suggestions for service 
areas they would like to examine at future meetings. 

Page 31



II. Scrutiny in working groups - Identification of issues for in-depth 
scrutiny

The Committee is asked to discuss and identify issues they would like to 
include in the work programme for 2018/19.  This is for inclusion in the 
programme for committee meetings and also for in depth examination by 
task and finish working groups. Members are invited to put forward 
suggestions at the Committee. Members are asked to consider all the 
suggestions put forward and decide how to address the issues identified, 
this could be by inclusion in the Committee agenda, addressed by short, 
time limited review of two or three meetings or longer in depth 
examination.  Members are reminded when identifying issues for 
examination consideration should be given to how the review will result in 
improvements for local people.

III. Member training

One of the recommendations from the 2017/18 scrutiny review which  
considered ways to increase the effectiveness of the Councils scrutiny 
function advised that “comprehensive training is available for all Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee Members, but in particular new members, to ensure 
that they fully understand their role on the Committee and which will assist 
them when questioning representatives.” It is envisaged that an introductory 
training session using outside trainers will be arranged in the near future. 

APPENDICES

Appendix 1:  Draft Work Programme
Appendix 2:  Cabinet and Portfolio Responsibilities

Page 32



15 July 2019 Appendix 1

Overview and Scrutiny Committee work programme 2019/20

Programme of Portfolio 
Holding to account

Performance 
review

Current reviews Responses to scrutiny 
reviews

July 15 Quarter 4 
data

Work programming.

September 30 Quarter 1 
Performance

Annual Report Response to Household Refuse 
Recycling Report

November 11 C&D Scrutiny 

January 20 Quarter 2 
Performance

March 12 Quarter  3 
Performance

Carried forward 
from 2018/19

Quarter 4 
Performance

Shop radio update 
May/June
Update domestic 
violence data
Procurement 
processes and local 
businesses.

P
age 33



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2

Gedling Borough Council 2019/20

Portfolio Holder Responsibilities

_________________________________________________________________________

Leader of the Council

Councillor John Clarke

 Overall strategy and delivery of agreed Council priorities and objectives.
 Oversight of all Cabinet responsibilities.
 Building and developing relationships with partners at a local, regional,

national and international level to pursue matters of interest to the Council and
the community.

 Representing the interests of the Council and the wider community on the
Local Enterprise Partnership, Metro Board, East Midlands Councils, and other
key strategic local, regional and national bodies.

 Oversight of the Council’s Partnership and Collaboration Agreements with key
partners.

 Building and maintaining positive relationships with and between elected
Members and employees.

 Promoting and encouraging effective corporate governance and the highest
standards of probity.

 Emergency Planning.
 Strategic lead for Economic Development and Inward investment.

Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for Resources & Reputation

Councillor Michael Payne

 Budget strategy, financial management and local taxation.
 Asset Management, including the Council’s investment property, sales and

purchase of land.
 Commercialisation.
 Communications, marketing and promotion.
 Media relations.
 Customer Services, information and communications technology, including

digitalisation.
 Transformation of Council services, processes and governance.
 Social Mobility.

Portfolio Holder for Public Protection

Councillor David Ellis

 Crime Reduction and Community Safety.
 Public Protection.
 CCTV and RIPA.

Page 35



Appendix 2

 Safeguarding.
 Environmental Health.
 Empty Properties

Portfolio Holder for Growth & Regeneration

Councillor Jenny Hollingsworth

 Planning policy, development management and building control.
 Transportation.
 Town Centre management and development.
 Business improvement, local business engagement, promotion and support.
 Housing Development.
 Employment and Skills.

Portfolio Holder for Housing, Health & Well-being

Councillor Henry Wheeler

 Leisure Centres and Sports Development, including lead for sport and
physical activity.

 Health Promotion and development.
 Bonington Theatre.
 Homelessness and Housing Needs.
 Council housing development.
 Housing and council tax benefits.
 Liaison with Public Health and Clinical Commissioning Group.

Portfolio Holder for Environment

Councillor Peter Barnes

 Waste Management and recycling.
 Street cleaning.
 Maintenance and development of parks, open spaces, cemeteries and

Allotments.
 Pet cremation.
 Energy management and sustainability.

Portfolio Holder for Community Development

Councillor Gary Gregory

 Community centres.
 Neighbourhood Working.
 Community Events.
 Arts and culture.
 Community Engagement and Consultation, including liaison with the voluntary

sector and Parish Councils.
 Members’ services, including member training and development.

Page 36



Appendix 2

Portfolio Holder for Young People and Equalities

Councillor Viv McCrossen

 Play and events for young people.
 Equalities.
 Youth Council and Youth Mayor.
 Engagement and consultation with young people.
 Liaison with various bodies and agencies in relation to mental health.
 Support the Deputy Leader in the development of a Social Mobility

Commission and delivery of agreed key actions.
 Work with the Portfolio holder for Growth and Regeneration in reducing levels

of youth unemployment.
 Work with the Portfolio holder for Public Protection to reduce risk and fear of

crime for young people.

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



Reports and Notices received by the Chair of Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee as required under the Constitution or Law.

1. Items referred to the Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee under 
Contract Standing orders and Standing orders for dealing with Land

Notifications received where it has not been possible to obtain 3 quotations for a 
contract estimated to be between £10,000 and £50,000.

- Contract with Route One Travel for the provision of chauffeuring and 
support services to the Mayor.  The contract will run for one year. Soft 
market testing has been carried out with a number of local firms and it is 
clear that the market for chauffeuring of this nature is very limited within 
the Borough.  With the exception of the current supplier there were no 
suitable firms with current licenses identified.

- Provision of expert advice on the future of Arnold Market site.  In July 2018 
Cabinet approval was obtained to secure temporary improvement of the 
market whilst a wider regeneration scheme was being considered. In order 
to prepare detailed plans officers sought advice on a range of options for 
the market.  The Council does not have the expertise or knowledge to 
prepare this feasibility work and is seeking advice from a known leading 
expert in the field. Initial research suggests there are a limited number of 
companies who can do this, who know the area and have previously 
worked with Local Authorities.  Officers are therefore appointing 
Quarterbridge, for an initial 3 month period, as this consultancy can 
provide dedicated personnel who have had significant experience on 
working on similar projects 

- System Center Configuration Manager – Fast Track Deployment. It is 
proposed to enter into a contract with Phoenix Software Limited for the 
PowerOn Fast Track Systems Center package as per the Statement of 
Works through the Crown Commercial Services Digital Marketplace G-
Cloud Framework.  The package includes planning, implementation of 
System Center Configuration Manager on our servers, and consultancy to 
configure the system and train IT staff in its ongoing setup. A framework 
identified with the Crown Commercial Services Digital Marketplace allows 
the Council to contract services to the supplier which has competitive 
tendered for these services.

- Pay360 Upgrade. This contract relates to an upgrade and server move for 
the cash receipting system Pay360 provided by Capita.  Every payment 
made by cheque, online, automated payment line or via telephone to 
Customer Services at the Civic centre are processed through this system. 
As the system is provided by Capita, only Capita can provide the upgrade. 
It is not therefore possible to obtain three quotes as no other company or 
entity can provide this service.

Please note that the above list may not be exhaustive; items may be referred at short 
notice to the Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

Page 39

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 11 March 2019.
	4 Council Plan 2018/19: Overview of Quarter 4 and Year End Performance
	Outcomes Q4 1819 Appx 1

	5 Scrutiny Work Programme
	Appendix 1 WorkProg
	Appendix 2

	6 Reports and Notices received by the Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee as required under the Constitution or Law.

